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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Newberry College is today a small, church-related liberal arts college in the
central section of South Carolina. It has grown from a single structure institution
into a modern, twenty building complex spread across a sixty acre campus. While the
majority of the college's buildings date from the 1950s when a program of expansion
was undertaken, four of the oldest structures remain. These four buildings - Smeltzer
Hall, Keller Hall, Holland Hall, and Derrick Hall - which significantly represent the
college's development - comprise the Newberry College Historic District. These
four structures are typical of late 19th and early 20th Century institutional
architecture. Smeltzer Hall and Keller Hall are Victorian structures, while the
Tater buildings, Holland and Derrick Halls, reflect the Neo-classical revival of the
early 20th Century. Located on a landscaped greenh, the historic district occupies
approximately 12 acres. t R

1. Smeltzer Hall: The oldest building within the district is Smeltzer Hall (1877),

a brick Italianate Victorian structure. The three story central portion is flanked by
balanced two story wings which terminate in projecting pavillions. Significant
features include wooden cornice brackets, the original standing seam metal roof, and
various projecting window pediments. Front central section has segmentally arched,
paired 4/4 T1ight windows. Triangular and segmental pediments with supporting consoles
surmount front door and windows on first and second stories. There are no apparent
later additions or alterations to exterior of building.

Smeltzer Hall was constructed on the foundations of the college's first building,
an 1858 Gothic revival structure which was demolished about 1877. Smeltzer was the
first college building to be constructed on the old campus after the War Between the
States. Named for the Reverend Josiah P. Smeltzer, D. D., President of the college from
1861-1877, the building was constructed at a cost of $15,503, contributed by Newberry
citizens. From 1877 until 1895, Smeltzer Hall served as the single building of
Newberry College, housing all departments and a chapel. Since 1895 the building has
been used as a dormitory.

2. Keller Hall: Directly east of Smeltzer Hall is Keller Hall (1895), a symmetrical
two story Victorian Italianate brick building. The three story bell tower has a
semicircular arched open belfrey with wooden balustrade. The entrance into the
building is defined by a slightly recessed double door with semicircular transom.
Other noteworthy features include a sawtooth brick cornice, Queen Anne chimneys with
corbeled caps, and stilted arches over the windows on the south facade. The only
apparent exterior alterations are the chimney on the southeast cormer, the enclosed
window and fire escape on the south facade, and the heavy window screens.

Contractor for the project was C. C. Davis of Newberry. Originally constructed
for use as a chapel, library, and science laboratory, Keller Hall has more recently
been the college's center for student activities.

(continued)
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Throughout its history Newberry College has been an important civic and. cultural focal
point in the city and county of Newberry, South Carolina. It has prov1ded,h1gher educa-
tion for the state's Lutheran population and has served as the foundation for continued
religious studies. Newberry County historian Thomas Pope: has written, "Certainly the
community has benefited mbre from this institution tQan any other. And surely the cultural
impact has been great upon the town and the county."! But the impact has reached beyond
the community and county, as Newberry College graduates have contributed to the develop-
ment of the state and naﬁion. As of 1976, 275 of the college's 5,500 graduates have

later become Lutheran miqisters, and 1,345 (24%) have entered the teaching profession.

Chartered by the state 1qg1slature in 1856, the college had its actual beginning more

than a quarter century edr11er. In 1828 John Bachman challenged the South Carolina
Lutheran Synod to estab]msh an institution for training Lutheran clergymen. The challenge
was met when, in 1832, tqe Theological Sem1nary and Classical Academy was established

in Lexington, South Caro lina, There the institution remained until 1856, when the Synod
decided to make the 1nstﬂtut1on a degree granting college located in Newberny.

In 1856 Newberry College | was thus established, and in 1859 the first bu11d1ng was
completed. (Designed by}George E. Walker, a prominent antebellum architect in South
Carolina, the original Gothic revival style building was of stucco on brick painted. gray
and scored to resemble stone. The building deteriorated during and following the War
Between the States and was demolished ca. 1877.)

The first session (1859) saw 150 students enrolled; the future looked bright. By 1865,
however, the War Between the States had greatly diminished the student body, and classes
were suspended. Soon thereafter the Confederacy established supply headquarters in
the college. The structure was later used as quarters for Union troops.

|

By the end of the war, t%e structure was deteriorating and financial difficulties were
also plaguing the co]]egE. It was decided to relocate in Walhalla, South Carolina, which
had offered buildings and grounds to the school. Nine years later, when the college
charter came up for renewal the Synod voted to return the college to Newberry, whose
citizens would contr1buqe in excess of $15,000 (as well as land) for its return.

| (continued)

TThomas Pope, The History of Newberry County, South Carolina 1749-1860, Vol. I
(Columbia, S. C.: University of South 'Carolina Press, 1973), p. 221.
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3. Holland Hall: Holland Hall (1904) was designed by Frank P. Milburn, prominent
Southeastern architect whose specialty was large public buildings, and who designed
South Carolina's controversial State House dome. The symmetrical two story Neo-
classical revival brick building has a projecting central pavillion flanked by balanced
wings. Imposing features include a pedimented two story portico embellished with
modillions and supported by four Roman Ionic columns. A heavy cornice encircles the
building and is supported by modillions with a brick parapet above. Windows are 2/2
sash configurations crowned with segmental arches. Pediments also surmount the main
and side portals. Window air-conditioning units are the only intrusions to the
exterior of this otherwise unaltered building.

Now housing the college's administrative offices, as well as an experimental theater
for the Speech and Drama Department, Holland Hall was originally constructed to house
college offices, recitation rooms, an auditorium, and two literary society halls.
Supplemented by private donations, part of the construction cost came from $15,000
paid to the college in 1898 by the U.S. Government as reparation for damages done to
the original college building during a Federal troop garrison at the end of the War
Between the States.

The building was named for the Reverend George W. Holland, D.D., college president
from 1877 to 1895.

4, Derrick Hall: Derrick Hall (1925) is Tocated directly across the green from

Holland Hall. It is a 20th Century three story brick building of the eclectic Classic
Revival style. Significant features include a flat, central two story portico supported
by four Ionic columns and a pedimented front doorway with columned surrounds. The

front doorway motif is repeated at the rear and side doors, which have projecting one
story porches.

Constructed in 1925 at a cost of $45,378, Derrick Hall was built as a dormitory for
men and later renovated as a residence for women students. It now provides dormitory
rooms, quarters for the resident director, reception and lounge rooms, a kitchen and
an infirmary. It is named in honor of former Newberry College President Sidney J.
Derrick, LL.D., who held the presidency from 1918 until 1930. Contractor for the
building was L.A. Wilson.
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Despite continued financial problems, the college grew. In 1878 Smeltzer Hall was
built; in 1895 Keller Hall was constructed. In 1904 another structure, Holland Hall,
was added to the campus. In 1925 Derrick Hall was constructed, completing the
historic district.

The college also grew in other realms. In 1930 it became a coeducational institution,
and in 1932 the Florida and Southeastern Lutheran Synods joined the South Carolina
Synod in ownership and control of the college. In 1936 Newberry College was granted
full accreditation by the Southern Association of Colleges and Secondary Schools.
During the 1950s, several new buildings were constructed, indicative of the school's
continued growth.

Newberry College presently has an enrolliment of approximately 850 students, an expanded
financial structure, and a broadened curriculum. Plans for the future include the
restoration/renovation of several of the structures in the historic district. This
promising condition of Newberry College reflects the interest and involvement of the
Tocal citizens throughout the school's history, as well as that of the Lutheran Synod.

ARCHITECTURE: The four buildings in the Newberry College Historic District are typical
of late 19th and early 20th Century institutional architecture. The district contains
two eclectic Victorian buildings and two 20th Century Neo-classical revival buildings.

Smeltzer Hall (1877), the oldest extant building on campus, is the focal point of the
historic district. One of the four buildings can be attributed to a known architect:
Holland Hall (1904) was designed by Frank P. Milburn, whose buildings are found in many
Southeastern cities and campuses. His work is represented today in South Carolina

in one National Historic Landmark (the South Carolina State House, for which he was the
architect from 1900-1907) and Columbia's Unjon Station, on the National Register of
Historic Places. The unity of the district is achieved through compatibility of scale
and material and the associative value of the four buildings to Newberry College.
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